VISION
STATEMENT

outstanding corporate citizen, achieving excellent customer satisfaction and sustained

MISSION
STATEMENT

To contribute to national development by creating value for shareholders through
corporate clients.
This will be achieved by creating value and satisfaction for our customers through
excellent service driven by a highly skilled, empowered, visionary and inspired team
using appropriate technology, supported by good corporate governance.

CORE
VALUES
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Notice is hereby given that the 75th Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the 1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
will be held at the Civil Service Association (CSA) Centre, Sans Souci, Castries, on Tuesday 30th April, 2013 at
5:00 p.m.

AGENDA
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
•
•
•

Tabling of Proxies
the Minutes of the 74th Annual Meeting of Shareholders of 24th May, 2012
To
Matters arising out of the Minutes
To consider and adopt the 2012 Report of the Board of Directors
To consider and adopt the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders for the year ended
31st December, 2012.
To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2012.
To sanction a dividend of $0.40 cents per share as recommended by the Board of Directors.
Review of Directors’ Remuneration.
Report and Recommendation of Tender for Annual Bank Audit.
To elect three Directors.
In accordance with Section 4.6 of the Bank’s By-Law No. 1, the following directors retire by rotation:Dr. Charmaine Gardner, who is eligible for re-election
Mrs. Brenda Floissac-Fleming, who is eligible for re-election
Mr. Cyril Matthew, who will not be seeking re-election.

NOTE
Nominations may be made either in writing or on the prescribed forms and must reach the Bank’s
April, 2013)

NOTE
A Shareholder entitled to attend the meeting and vote may appoint a proxy to vote in his/her
place. A person appointed by proxy need not be a shareholder. The instrument appointing a
proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his/her attorney duly authorized
in writing, or if such appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand

forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting at which the person named in the
instrument proposes to vote and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
NOTICE is also hereby given that the Share Transfer Book of the Bank will be closed from 19th April, 2013
to 30th April, 2013 both dates inclusive.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Beryl Carasco-Alleyne

Corporate Secretary

continuing a legacy of nation building
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NOMINATION OF CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR
OF 1ST NATIONAL BANK ST. LUCIA LIMITED
NOTE
Every director shall be the holder in his or her own right of at least one hundred unencumbered
shares in the capital of THE COMPANY.
No one (other than a retiring director) shall be eligible to be a director unless notice in writing that
shall have been given to THE COMPANY by two other
he or she is a candidate for such
shareholders of THE COMPANY at least
days before the day of holding the meeting at which
the election is to take place.
We, the undersigned Shareholders of the above Bank nominate .......................................................................
............................................................................................of ..........................................................................................
as a candidate for election as a Director of the Bank at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled
for
................................................................................................

Signed: .............................................................................. Signed: .............................................................................
...........................................................................................
Print Name

...........................................................................................
Print Name

Date: ................................................................................. Date: .................................................................................
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GUIDELINES ON MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR DETERMINING FITNESS FOR DIRECTORSHIP

(As stated in Section 26 of the Banking Act #34 of 2006)
and proper person.

Every person who is likely to be a director of the Bank (the person) must be a
In general determination of this status, regard shall be had to the following:(a)

the person’s probity, competence and soundness of judgement for
a Director;

(b)

the diligence with which that person is likely to

(c)

whether the interests of depositors or potential depositors of the Bank are likely to be, in any
way, threatened by the person.

the responsibility of

the responsibilities of the position; and

In addition to the general provisions above, regard must be had to the previous conduct and activities
matters of the person, and in particular, to any evidence that the person
in business or
nominated as a candidate:(a)

has committed an offence involving fraud and other dishonesty or violence;

(b)

has contravened any provision made by or under an enactment designed for protecting members
of the public against
loss due to dishonesty, incompetence or malpractice by persons
services or the
concerned in the provision of banking, insurance, investment or other
management of companies or against
loss due to the conduct of a discharged or
un-discharged bankrupt;

(c)

is not current in his/her
institutions;

(d)

is not a member of either the Board, Management or Staff of institutions involved in business of
nature including banking business;
a

commitments and other obligations to the Bank and other

continuing a legacy of nation building
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APPOINTMENT OF PROXY
NOTE
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer, or of his
or her attorney duly authorised in writing, or if such appointer be a corporation either under
or attorney so authorised. A proxy shall have
its common seal or under the hand of an
in Sections 138 and 145 of
the same rights as the shareholder appointing him or her as
THE COMPANIES ACT 1996 (Rev. 2001). A proxy is valid only at the meeting in respect
of which it is given or any adjournment thereof.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority if any under
copy of that power of authority shall be deposited
which it is signed or a notarially
at the registered
of THE COMPANY not less than forty-eight hours before the time for
holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
A person appointed by proxy need not be a shareholder.
I

............................................................................... of .............................................................................

being a shareholder of the above company, hereby appoint ................................................................
of ...................................................................... or failing him/her ................................................................
of ................................................................................ my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the
meeting of shareholders of the above company to be held on ...............................................
the ........................... day of ............................................., 20........... and at any adjournment or
adjournments thereof.
Signed this …………………. day of ………………………………, 20……
Signed: .......................................................

...................................................................
Print Name
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1st National Bank was established
with people in mind
and that is at the heart
of our pursuit of balance
between business
and community involvement.
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1ST NATIONAL BANK ST. LUCIA LIMITED | CORPORATE DATA

HEAD OFFICE
Reduit, Gros Islet
P. O. Box 168
Castries, St. Lucia, West Indies
Tel: (758) 455 7000
Fax: (758) 453 1630

BUREAU DE CHANGE
George F.L. Charles Airport
Vigie, Castries
Tel : (758) 453 1683
Fax: (758) 451 8482
BUREAU DE CHANGE
SLASPA Ferry Terminal
Faux a Chaux , Castries
P. O. Box 168
Tel : (758) 453 0041
Fax: (758) 459 0730

CASTRIES BRANCH
21 Bridge Street
Castries, St. Lucia
West Indies
Tel: (758) 455 7000
Fax: (758) 453 1630

SWIFT: LUOBLCLC
Email :

RODNEY BAY MARINA
SUB- BRANCH
manager@1stnationalbankslu.com
Rodney Bay Marina, Gros Islet Website :
Tel: (758) 455 7050/1
www.1stnationalbankonline.com
Fax: (758) 458 4982
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Charmaine Gardner,
President & Chairperson

RODNEY BAY
SUB- BRANCH
J.Q.’s Mall
Rodney Bay, Gros Islet
Tel: (758) 452 8882/3
Fax: (758) 452 8884

Cyril Matthew
1st Vice President
Nigel Fulgence
2nd Vice President

CHOC BAY SUB- BRANCH
Mercury Court
Choc Bay, Castries
Tel: (758) 455 7042
Fax: (758) 453 0943

Brenda Floissac-Fleming
Joseph Maxwell
Christian Husbands
Johnson Cenac
Tedburt Theobalds

MARIGOT BAY
SUB- BRANCH
Marina Village
Marigot Bay, Castries
Tel: (758) 458 3744
Fax: (758) 458 3638

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers
REGULATOR
Eastern Caribbean
Bank

Central

Financial Sector Supervision
Unit
AFFILIATIONS

Caribbean Credit
Corporation (CCCC)

Card

Eastern Caribbean Securities
Exchange (ECSE)
Eastern Caribbean Home
Mortgage Bank (ECHMB)
ECIC Holdings Ltd.
Caribbean Association of
Banks (CAB)
Eastern Caribbean Institute
of Banking (ECIB)
Caribbean Association of

Geraldine Lendor-Gabriel

Inc. (CAACM)

Adrian Augier

St. Lucia Chamber of
Commerce, Industry and
Agriculture

G. Carlton Glasgow
Managing Director

VIEUX FORT SUB- BRANCH
Commercial Street, Vieux Fort
P. O. Box 342
Tel: (758) 454 6213
Fax: (758) 454 6137

SOLICITORS
Floissac, Fleming & Associates

Beryl Carasco-Alleyne
Corporate Secretary

St.
Lucia
Employers
Federation (SLEF)
Saint Lucia
Tourism
(SLHTA)
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Hotel and
Association

ACHIEVEMENTS
Book value per share

2011

2012

2011

2012

$15.12

54.2%

$16.03

53.5%

Earnings per share

2011

2012

per share

per share

1.38

1.39

Average number of permanent employees

2011
107

2012
112
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Customer Service remains at the heart of all activities at

We give our customers the assurance
that we will continue to serve them well.
continuing a legacy of nation building
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Building a strong bank means
setting a solid foundation
of satisfied customers,
state-of-the-art products
and services, trained staff,
informed shareholders
and prudent management.
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The Board of Directors takes this
opportunity to place on record its gratitude
to Mr G. Carlton Glasgow, under whose
leadership and guidance 1st National
Bank has grown and strengthened both
internally and within the domestic and
regional banking sector.
Mr. Glasgow retired with due notice

the Bank as mentor and Managing Director
for just over 12 years. He was pivotal to
repositioning of the Bank and for this and

DIVIDEND RECOMMENDATION
Increasingly conscious of the current
economic climate, the Board of Directors
recommends that the 2012 dividend payment
be maintained at the 2011 level of $0.40 per
share.
This recommendation is made on the basis
of the capital adequacy of the Bank which
making its recommendation, the Board takes

BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS FOR 2012
FINANCE
Names

No

Actual

HUMAN
RESOURCE
No

Actual

AUDIT
No

CREDIT RISK

Actual

Charmaine Gardner
Cyril Ma hew
Nigel Fulgence
Brenda FloissacFleming
Joseph Maxwell

1

1

1

1

6

6

1

1

6

6

1

1

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

JOINT MEETING
AUDIT/FINANCE

No

Actual

No

Actual

No

Actual

6

6

1

1

1

1

1

1

5

5

6

5

5

4

6

6

1

1

1

6

6

1

1

1

5

5

-

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Chris an Husbands

Johnson Cenac

1
5

4

5

5

6

1

6

Tedburt Theobalds

Geraldine LendorGabriel

6

6

6

1

6

6

*V. Adrian Augier
G.Carlton Glasgow

1

1

his many other insightful contributions,
the Board of Directors generously thanks
very best wishes for success in his future
endeavours. I am certain, that shareholders
are pleased with the Bank’s progress as a
result of Mr. Glasgow’s tenure.

6

5

1

0

1

0

1

0

1

1

of the Bank, and the need to preserve
shareholder returns in so far as it is prudent
to do so. The recommended payment will
well within our capital distribution ceiling of
40%.

continuing a legacy of nation building
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In this and future recommendations
regarding annual dividends, the Board
pledges to carefully consider long-term
shareholder and depositor interest as well as
evolving regulatory guidelines, and the need
to insulate the Bank from increasing volatility

The increasing incidence in the region of
country default on current debt is cause for
serious concern. As such, steps are being
taken, particularly through the work of
oversight of the Bank’s investment portfolio.
The Bank is also active in the on-going regional
initiatives that seek to strengthen functional

OUR OUTLOOK

sector. These initiatives, conducted largely
under the auspices of the East Caribbean
Central Bank seek to ensure stability in the
power of 1st National Bank will continue sector and to safeguard depositor interest.
to grow sustainably overtime, we must also
be prudent in our anticipation of future
volatility in earnings and remain steadfast in
IN CLOSING
our management of exposure and risk.
1st National Bank continues to invest in We are proud of our journey over the
last seventy-four years, and our distinct
human resource development. These are vital contribution to the collective task of nation
components of our long-term sustainable building. Our progress, arduously achieved
growth
strategy.
The
accompanying and cautiously preserved by our conservative
expenditure and the need to provide for principles, has contributed to our resilience
non-performing assets will continue to and growth, particularly in the last decade.
As we continue to build this uniquely Saint
However, the Board has placed high priority
Lucian institution, we thank our shareholders,
on reducing the incidence of non-performing
loans, with the aim of reducing the associated
commitment to the Bank, its consistent
risks and costs.
progress and its many successes.
As anticipated, Government’s introduction
of a value added tax (VAT) has increased We thank our fellow shareholders for the
some costs of operation. Accordingly, steps
have been taken to mitigate VAT implications preserve and grow their investment.
wherever possible and to pursue alternative
earning prospects so as to minimize the We appreciate your constructive feedback.
The Bank’s performance outlook will continue

To our many loyal and new customers, we

the major sectors of the domestic and regional
We will continue to serve you well.
economy. Despite reassuring growth trends
in the North American economy and the
impact this may have on domestic tourism
and foreign direct investment, no major __________________________
shift in the current economic performance is Dr. Charmaine Gardner
anticipated for another 12 to 18 months.
President, on behalf of the Board of Directors.
continuing a legacy of nation building
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BOARD
OF
DIRECTORS

Nigel Fulgence
2nd Vice President

Charmaine Gardner
President

1st Vice President

Brenda Floissac-Fleming
Director

Joseph Maxwell
Director
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Johnson Cenac
Director

Tedburt Theobalds
Director

Christian Husbands
Director

Geraldine Lendor-Gabriel

V. Adrian Augier
Director

G. Carlton Glasgow
Managing Director

Director
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G.
Carlton Glasgow
__________________
Managing Director
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S
REPORT

W

woes un-abating, it is pleasing to
report that the Bank returned a

2012 of $6.9 million, that is comparable to
the result for last year. The balance sheet
recorded marginal growth of 0.4%, growing
by approximately $2 million to $488 million at
December 31st 2012. We are happy to report
that the balance sheet did not contract over
the performance for last year.
GDP growth is low in some developed
countries whilst others are experiencing
itself on our asset quality, mainly on our loans
to customers’ portfolio, resulting in $5 million
reduced earnings.
The global and indeed, local

economic

imbalances have widened and debt to GDP
target ratios have been surpassed in St. Lucia
and many of our neighbouring countries.
Despite this parlous position, we are positive
about the Bank’s ability to be a safe haven for
depositors’ funds, as we respond strategically
to those challenges.

our part to assist in economic recovery.

aware of the grave economic, emotional and
social consequences that can result. On the
as needed to enhance service delivery as
well as to support our expansion strategy of
providing customers with greater access to
full and seamless banking services.
problems of unemployment and access to
quality education, we launched our well
received and timely student loan program,
resources not available previously.
We have assisted some of our customers who
struggled to meet their monthly payments
by restructuring their loans, and providing
timely advice on cash management, where
necessary. Additionally, the Bank holds
Government of St. Lucia bonds and treasury
bills, thus providing the necessary funding to
support its developmental thrust.
Management undertook several initiatives
during the year to grow the Bank in the
medium to long term. Amongst these were
the following:

1.
numbers and their use of our products, in

2.

Growth of our branch network and
expansion of our business operating units to
the north, at IGY Rodney Bay Marina. Our

continuing a legacy of nation building
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strategy to provide customers with greater
Financial Review
access to our services is being implemented
and this is expected to generate positive
year, from $8.9 million to $8.4 million. This
results in the medium to long term;
was due to a reduction in interest income
Increased focus on small businesses
which are dynamic, innovative and essential
to our economy. We recognize the symbiotic increased marginally over the result for
nature of these business relationships and the 2011, a fair result considering the economic
circumstances.
nation to economic growth;

3.

Revenue

4.

Continued
implementation of an
automated clearing house (ACH). This process
began in 2010 with substantial expenditure on
resources to ensure timely implementation in
April 2013. The ACH initiative is spearheaded
by the Eastern Caribbean Central Bank to
facilitate the clearing of cheques and transfer
of funds across the Eastern Caribbean
Currency Union. The ACH will greatly
clearings system, resulting in risk mitigation;

5.

Our strategy regarding the property
on #18 Bridge Street was reviewed and a
decision was taken to dispose of the property.
Alternative strategies for our corporate

The decline in total interest revenue of 1%
over 2011 was driven by lower interest rates
on earning assets. Investment revenue earned
was less than that for last year by 19% or
$1 million, due to the general decline in
interest rates on treasury bills, repurchase
agreements and bonds, a direct result of the
market forces and use of funds in the Bank’s
operations, thereby reducing the carrying
value available for reinvestment. Interest
earned on loans and advances increased by
1%.

expectation to conclude options during 2013;

6. Our corporate social role is ever present

in our activities as we believe that our
execute our role as corporate citizens. This
contributed to our winning the award for Non Interest Income
Corporate Social Responsibility for yet Non interest income increased over last year
another year at the St. Lucia Business Awards by 30% to $8.2 million. This was driven in
held for the year 2012.
the main by bad debts collected, increases in
credit card and foreign exchange income and
We continue to build a sound Bank, though net gains on disposal of assets. Income from
there is always room for improvement as the foreign exchange and card services increased
business environment and systems are never over that for 2011 by 6% and 45% respectively.
static. Work is always ongoing to create value Bad debts recovered increased by 74% over
for our customers and ultimately for our
shareholders.
manage our risk exposure continue. This is a
good result.
continuing a legacy of nation building
- 22 -

Total income increased marginally by 1%
to $43 million. Loan and advances interest
income comprise 71% of total income.
The graph below illustrates total income

Net interest income fell slightly by 3%
principally because of lower interest rates
on earning assets and lower balances on
investments held. As a result, the net interest
margin regressed from 4.44% in 2011 to 4.23%
in 2012.

Non Interest Expenses

Operating expenses or non interest expenses
incurred were necessary for the operation of
the Bank and a breakdown of the expenses
can be seen in Notes 22 to 24. The total
expense increased reasonably by 4% over that
for 2011. The increase is due mainly to value
added tax, additional expenses relevant to
the commissioning of the Rodney Bay Marina
sub Branch, renovation expenses pertinent to
the Rodney Bay sub Branch and general price
increases.

Interest Expense

The interest expense increased slightly.
That notwithstanding, the weighted average
cost of funds fell as anticipated from 3.58%
at the year ended 2011, to 3.44% due to the
management of the interest rate on deposits as
rates on market instruments fell. A deliberat
decision was taken to maintain our intereste
rate on bonus savings accounts.

continuing a legacy of nation building
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Depreciation

The Balance Sheet
The Bank’s balance sheet position at December
in 2012 because of the accelerated depreciation 31st 2012 totalled $488 million, a mere 0.4%
of the building on #18 Bridge Street last year. or $2 million over the audited result for 2011.
Additionally, the total additions to property, Although we anticipated an increase in the
plant and equipment were not as high as last
year.
Provision
negativley impacted our results. A total
provision expense of $5 million was recorded,
increasing over the position last year by $1.2
million or 34%. Provision for loan losses
increased from $2.4 million in 2011 to $4.2
million in 2012. An amount of $0.7 million
was provided against investments, the
largest component being applicable to our
investment in Eastern Caribbean Investment
Corporation (ECIC) Ltd.
Productivity

balance sheet of 4%, the end result was not
surprising. Our strategies are under constant
review to determine the best response going
forward.
Cash And Balances With Central Bank

than last year. Productivity before provision
on loans and investments improved to
53.5% from 54.2% last year. The position
has improved year on year over the last
three years. Ongoing improvements in our

the year to satisfy its normal operating
requirements. An amount equivalent to
approximately 2% of deposits is generally
held. Management considers the position at
year end was adequate to meet our funding
needs.

in the short to medium term.

Loans And Advances To Financial Institutions

Due to deliberate decisions taken, this
by $8 million or 25% as we sought to reduce
country. The carrying value of the portfolio
at the year end was $24 million. The weighted
average interest rate on these instruments
was 4.63% compared to 4.69%.
Loans And Advances To Customers
The net loans and advances to customers
portfolio increased to $349 million, up by 6%
from $330 million in 2011. Considering the
economic climate, this performance is fair.
Demand loans and mortgages form the largest
component of the total loans and advances
portfolio at 48% and 44% respectively.

continuing a legacy of nation building
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Credit cards were carried on the balance
value is $1.2 million and comprises 0.3%
of the total loans and advances portfolio.
Strategies are being implemented to increase
the value of this portfolio as we realise there
our technology savvy customers.

on productive loans is 9.06%, down from
9.23% last year. The graph above
below illustrates
total loans and advances each year for the last
Of the total loans past due but not impaired,
demand loans comprise the highest
percentage at 55% followed by mortgages
at 42%. Total non performing loans to total
loans increased to 25.3%, up from 21.1% in
2011. Management is actively working to
address the position in 2013.

Investment Securities
At the year ended December 31st 2012, the
balance held in investment securities totalled
$29 million, with $9 million in instruments
available for sale and $20 million in the heldto-maturity category. The reduction in the
amounts available for sale is due to payments
being made to principal as agreed.
The increase in held-to-maturity category
represents an investment in a medium term
Bond of the Government of St. Lucia.
Of the total investment portfolio 81% was
held in maturities under one year, inclusive
of 18% that is held in maturities less than
one month. 19% of the portfolio is held in
maturities held over one year. The Bank

The graph below illustrates that the personal
sector comprises the largest component of risk and return using conservative principles
our lending. 54% of total credit was made to to guide the decision making process.
the personal sector compared to 56% in 2011,
percentage point increase to 16% in 2012. We
continue to review our demographic data as
well as our tactical strategies to diversify the
portfolio.

Property Plant And Equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment stood at $13.7 million at December
31st 2012, down from $15.9 million at the
previous year end. The reduction was due to a
marginal increase in the value of the property
Loan commitments approved but not yet on #21 Bridge Street, Castries of $0.08 million,
booked and awaiting hypothecs and related
property at Commercial Street, Vieux Fort
documents total $23 million.
continuing a legacy of nation building
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of approximately $1 million, disposal of the
property on #18 Bridge Street of $2.8 million
and disposal of computer equipment and
vehicle totalling $0.125 million. Additions to
property plant and equipment totalled $0.9
million, representing renovation works and
equipment in the main, with a further $0.9
million in work in progress pertinent to the

Equity
Total shareholders’ equity stood at $80.1
million, increasing from $75.6 million last
our conservative capital retention strategy of
retaining at least 60% of yearly earnings. It
last eight years did not exceed 30% of current

the net depreciation charge for the year and serves multiple purposes mainly to mitigate
risk should there be solvency issues and to
accumulated depreciation on disposals.
grow the business.
Other assets consist mainly of card receivables,
prepayments for items like software licences Risk Management
insurances and deposits for rent. The Bank Risk is intrinsic in banking and 1st National
has a small tax receivable at the end of 2012 of Bank has developed a risk culture where
reporting, discussing, collaborating and
$0.125 million.
sharing of information is the norm. The
Deposits and other liabilities
Bank’s liquidity, interest rate, market, credit
Deposits by customers comprise the largest and capital risk is monitored periodically.
component (99%) of liabilities and 83% Heads of Department have responsibility
of total liabilities and equity, inclusive of for key areas of risk and compliance, with
shareholders. Total deposits grew by 0.04%; oversight by designated Senior Managers
savings deposits and demand deposits grew and the Board of Directors. Some of the more
by 3% and 11% respectively. This growth was critical risks for the Bank are elaborated
below.
challenges being experienced by all economic Liquidity Risk
Liquidity is essential to every business
interest rate of funds fell from 3.58% to 3.44% and our ability to manage surplus levels of
liquidity throughout the year is critical. The
this year end.
Bank relies on customer deposits as a major
source of funds for its operations as well as on
Other liabilities include manager’s cheques
payable, banker’s payments, payables to income. The option of funding via the ECCB
suppliers and shareholders.
repo market is available as well as funding
via the Inter-bank Market.
Management considers that the liquidity
position is adequate to satisfy our liabilities as
they become due. Monitoring of the liquidity
position is carried out on a regular basis using
a combination of ratios and reports forward
planning.
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Credit Risk
Outlook
The Bank is exposed to credit risk through Low economic growth for St. Lucia and the
its lending and investment asset portfolios. ECCU region is expected in the short term
Management monitors the entire portfolio to
country and maturity. We deem our credit
risk exposure to be high and we anticipate
that the draft foreclosure legislation will be
enacted to help manage that risk. The Bank’s
Credit Risk Policy is under review to guide
the management of risk in a targeted manner.
The Board of Directors provide oversight of
credit risk with management responsible for
implementing, monitoring and reporting on
performance.

sluggish growth of our economic mainstay,
tourism. We note that more Government
defaults on debts have occurred right here
in our region. We are concerned with the
narrowed opportunities to invest in what was
once risk free sovereign debt to diversify risk
and earn a decent return.
We believe there will be increased regulation
in the future mainly related to managing risk.
Meeting regulatory requirements is a costly
and mostly complex endeavour. We aim to

Operational Risk
Operational risk is inherent in banking and
relates to the risk of loss resulting from the regulatory requirements as far as required.
inadequate or failed systems. Operational
risk arises in many ways, for example, errors, Last year we reported that the United States
Government had introduced the Foreign
acts and business interruption. In order Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA). The
to mitigate operational risk, the Bank has implementation date is looming (before
policies systems and controls and a well January 2014). It is likely there will be changes
communicated and executed code of conduct. in legislation in each country to support this
Our organizational culture is one that new Act, and Banks will need to amend their
engenders high professionalism, integrity
Capital Risk
A strong regulatory capital position is
essential to the Bank’s growth and safety
objectives and its competitive position. The
Bank’s capital strategy is focussed on long
customers in the process as well as building
conditions arise. The Bank’s Tier 1 capital
ratio was 22% at December 31st 2012 and we
consider this an excellent position. We aim
to remain well capitalized at or above the
regulatory requirement of 8% in the event
that credit risk ratios increase.

also be trained for that purpose as banks
will be required to request more information
from their customers. We seek our customers’
forbearance during the process as severe
penalties are applicable if implementation is
not thorough or timely. Whatever model is
chosen, there will be cost implications and
many banks including ours, plan to seek
professional advice on the way forward.
Banks worldwide must comply with FATCA.
During the year, a draft of the foreclosure
legislation was sent to Government by the local
Bankers Association, seeking to streamline
the relevant Law as it stands. Government has
Caribbean Currency Union (ECCU) level so
that it will be considered among the laws to
be harmonized within the Economic Union.
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is eagerly awaited as we believe this will users of the System will therefore have more
non accrual loans and consequently our non in the clearing of funds. Additionally, laser
performing loans ratio.
statements were implemented in readiness for
the ACH System in which scanned images of
cheques and relevant data will be presented
with the ECCU Eight Point Stabilization
and Growth Programme are continuing.
The banking industry in the region has
experienced some form of consolidation in
recent years and ECCB was pivotal in the
process, registering some level of success for
point 7 of the aforesaid Plan. Our discourse
with indigenous banks in the region to cooperate along functional lines is continuing,
year end.

negatively impact our earnings and asset
quality in 2013. Our response is not static
and is reviewed periodically for relevance.
Although outcomes cannot be predicted
our team can continue to deliver reasonable
results within our current modus operandi
of conservatism, excellent customer service
and continuously reviewing our strategy to
satisfy our stakeholders.

or exchanged among banks. Physical cheques
will no longer be readily available to be sent
out with customer statements. Instead, a laser
printout (front and back) of all cheques will
be dispatched. This is an ideal application
to work with the ACH system because it will
Customer Service And Delivery Channels streamline the otherwise labour intensive
Customer Service remains at the heart of dispatch of customer statements.
all activities at 1st National Bank. This
engaged in extensive and rigorous testing of
nomination for the Service Excellence Award the ACH System for most of the year and we
by the St. Lucia Chamber of Commerce and are happy to report that 1st National Bank
Agriculture was no accident. We give our
customers the assurance that we will continue banks to carry out end-to-end testing by yearto serve them well.
end. The international banks are due to start
The Bank’s core system was upgraded their testing early 2013 so that implementation
early in the year to accommodate the across the region could be executed by April
implementation of the Automated Clearing 2013.
House System (ACH). When the ACH System
is implemented in 2013, cheques will clear Response to our Student Loans product was
within 24 hours of presentation to a bank, and very encouraging. The product makes tertiary
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fees. Our product increased the amount
which can be loaned as well as lengthened
the repayment period to provide some much
needed ease in these challenging economic
times.
We are pleased to report that renovation
work on the Rodney Bay sub-Branch was 80%
complete, having commenced in September.
This was mainly to alleviate the congestion
and to enhance the ambience for the comfort

Our customers have embraced our electronic
products as our online banking and debit
service delivery with the addition of customer card applications grew beyond expectations
during the year. Our strategy for the near
2013.
future includes initiatives to increase our
sophisticated customer base.

Corporate Social Responsibility

1st National Bank continues a legacy of
corporate citizenry begun 74 years ago. The
ongoing development of an indigenous
institution has helped build our nation’s
economy on a culture of savings and
investment. Through our robust Corporate
Social Responsibility programme, 1st National
the lives and situations of the elderly, the
The Bank continued expanding its network youthful, the disadvantaged, the artistic, the
on the island by opening its Rodney Bay
Marina sub-Branch on December 10th 2012, towards higher education and upholders of
just in time for the annual Atlantic Rally for the nation’s cultural traditions.
Cruisers (ARC) race which terminates at
the Rodney Bay Marina. The sub-Branch
was appropriately branded, with night-time
illumination to enhance its presence in the
area. We are happy to note that this operating
loans, credit and debit cards. Business was
fairly brisk as predicted notwithstanding
the fact that there was no banking presence
in the Marina for about one year. The
commissioning of this new operating unit,
bings the total full service units to six, with
two Bureaux De Changes.
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Arts And Culture

This year, the Bank supported “Dance Mirage”
The legacy of national development a production hosted by the Silver Shadow
progressed in 2012 with the Bank’s salute to performing Arts Academy in commemoration
St. Lucia’s illustrious sons in its 2012 calendar of its 21st Anniversary.
was an impressive historical record of men
who contributed to the development of St.
Lucia and the region. The response to the
2012 calendar was overwhelmingly positive.
Schools and libraries in particular, have
increased demand for the publication as it
contains rare and valuable information.
The Bank expanded that development into
Nobel Laureate week sponsoring a number

1st National Bank is the premier sponsor of
Word Alive International Literary Festival.
The event, in its seventh year, collaborated with
the Curriculum and Materials Development
Unit of the Ministry of Education, ensuring
that both students and teachers from around
the island got an opportunity to participate
in the activity. The festival featured writers
and poets from New York, Jamaica, Dominica
and St. Lucia. The Bank also saw the need
to support a St. Lucia Literary Night which
is the signature event of the Castries Central
Library through the Ministry of Education.
This event provided a platform for the display
of the talent of St. Lucia’s literary artistes
while honouring Kendal Hippolyte for his

of events and workshops. Particular mention
must be made of the workshop which sought
to begin a national conversation on the
establishment of heritage sites which pay
homage to cultural and literary icons both
living and deceased.
The Bank has developed a reputation as the
patron of the Arts and Culture in St. Lucia. island.
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Community Jazz, in particular Fond D’Or
Jazz is the hallmark of the Bank’s involvement
in St. Lucia Jazz. This event generates
economic activity for residents within the
Dennery community through short and long
term employment. This is so, as the event
is managed and produced by the residents
themselves with support from 1st National
Bank. The Bank supports other fringe jazz
events featuring local artistes and musicians
during the festival.

For two consecutive years 1st National bank
teamed up with the St. Lucian Spirit Carnival
Mas for future generations. At a workshop
held at the Castries Comprehensive Secondary
school, students learnt about the creativity
which underpins St. Lucia Carnival.

We are of the view that this type of support
assists in preparing the next generation of
costume designers. Additionally, various
carnival groups and individuals were given
2012.

1st National Bank also demonstrated its
faith in the calypso art form with its support
extended to St. Aloysius R.C. Boys Primary
School’s calypso competition dubbed “R.C.
Jam “ and the Police calypso competition
dubbed “Kaiso Headquarters”, both regular
and exciting features of the St. Lucia carnival
season. The prize package for the young
calypsonians included a contribution by the
Bank towards their own saving accounts.

Carnival forms part of the Theatre Arts
component of the school’s curriculum, and
for both teachers and students the workshop
proved to be a great learning experience.
continuing a legacy of nation building
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The Bank took a decision to partner with the
from the support of 1st National Bank in UWI Open Campus to help their incoming
unique to St. Lucia. St. Lucia hosts a number
of cultural activities which celebrate the
island’s Creole legacy during October, which
is observed as Creole Heritage Month.
1st National Bank lent support to a cultural
night and kweyol poetry competition
organized by the Folk Research Centre.

options available to them. It also availed of
the opportunity to introduce the innovative
1st Class Student loan package, tailored to
students desirous of higher education but
unable to meet standard banking collateral
requirements. The Bank makes this possible
by providing funding for localized and
repackaging its terms on general student loan
accessible for persons to realize their dream
of furthering their education.
support to Anansi’s Challenge- an
educational game show for primary school
students. In 2012 the bank increased its

Education

to ensure the long term viability of the
television programme. The Bank continues
to provide scholarships to the winners of the
competition.

Continuing the legacy of education, the
nation’s youth is just one of the centres of focus The Homework Assistance Programme is
for 1st National Bank. The Bank provides another area within the education sphere
opportunities for higher education through deserving of the Bank’s support. This is
achieved by paying teachers and other
and services. A higher minded ideal is the professionals within the society who
Bank’s provision of local expertise, time and persevere with the disadvantaged children in
resources for the ongoing education of St. deprived areas within the community.
Lucia’s children. One example is the Bank’s
adoption of the Mon Repos Combined School.
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In continuing its legacy
The crown jewel in 1st National Bank’s thrust development through sports,
to develop sports in St. Lucia is its annual Bank supported the Under
collaboration with the St. Lucia Athletic National Netball Team at
Association in hosting the 13 and Under
Track and Field Championship. This event
signals the Bank’s ongoing commitment
to continue its legacy of providing a solid

Sports

of national
1st National
23 St. Lucia
the Eastern

Caribbean Central Bank O.E.C.S Under 23
netball competition. The Bank sees this
support as an avenue for the development of
St. Lucia’s young women.

platform for St. Lucia’s youth to accomplish
athletic excellence. The future looks bright not In 2012 1st National Bank again sponsored
only for the games but for the young athletes the National Secondary Schools Swimming
who participate in the activity. The track and Championship which was won by the Vieux
Fort Comprehensive Secondary School for a
springboard for several athletes now excelling second consecutive year.
on the world stage including Makeba Alcide
and Olympic high jumpers Darvin Edward The Masters Cricket League comprising nine
teams from various communities around St.
support has been given to Miss Spencer who
veterans sponsored by 1st National Bank.
the world stage, inclusive of her most recent The Bank saw this venture as an holistic
quest for Olympic Gold in 2012 in an initiative development of mind, body and spirit for the
veteran cricketers.
dubbed “Lavern to London”.
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Health

1st National Bank has worked hand in
hand with several charitable organizations
to deliver a message of healthy living to St.
Lucian society. This has manifested itself in
the Bank’s direct involvement in activities
such as Kouwi St. Lucie and the annual
Glaucoma Day March.

The St. Lucia Sickle Cell Association is
an organization dedicated to providing
medication and medical services to local
‘sicklers’ on the island. This year in addition
to covenanted support provided by the Bank,
the Association was ably supported in hosting
the Caribbean Organization of Sickle Cell
Associations’ Conference here in St. Lucia.
Established in 1998, the Child Development
and Guidance Centre is an oasis of support
for children with physical and emotional
disabilities from birth to 16 years of age.
main mission is to provide early health care
intervention for the children. 1st National
Bank provides generous support to the Centre
in executing its mandate.

The International Glaucoma Day March
took participants around the town and in
residential areas of Soufriere to sensitize the
communities about this eye disease. Bank
drive.
Kouwi St. Lucie is a precursor to the National
Telethon hosted by the National Community
massive public fundraiser which helps to

Community Outreach

commitment
to
Foundation. 1st National Bank continues to 1st National Bank’s
continuing its legacy of community
involvement can be used as a measure of the
participation as well.
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success of the individuals, organizations and
causes it has supported over the last decade.
The Bank has signed covenants of assistance
with several organizations and contributes
regularly to activities which uplift the human
spirit. Some of the organizations include:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

The Salvation Army
The Holy Family Children’s Home
The Marian Home for the Elderly
The St. Lucy’s Home
Child Development and Guidance
Centre
6. Centre for Adolescent Renewal and
Education
7. St. Luca Blind Welfare Association
8. St. Lucia Sickle Cell Association
support to an initiative to bring to St. Lucia
what may well become the Caribbean
headquarters of the World Youth Alliance.
The World Youth Alliance is a global coalition
of young people promoting the dignity
of persons and building solidarity among
developed and developing nations.
The Bank continued its legacy of supporting
women in St. Lucia through two special
activities in 2012. The Pat Charles Memorial
Lecture featured the island’s Governor
General speaking on the topic “Negotiating
a National Development Agenda: The role of
Culture”. In her presentation Her Excellency
between national development and culture
with the new thrust towards the advancement
of a cultural industry on the island.
The Division of Gender Relations hosted a
retreat called “The Mother –Daughter Link,”
which focused on the special relationship
which exists between mothers and daughters,
and the economic challenges they encounter
in the wake of trauma. The Bank maintained
its partnership with the Division of Gender
Relations
in celebrating International
Women’s Day. The theme for the day’s
activities was “Connecting Girls, Inspiring

Futures”. The spotlight fell on much younger
women during the lecture/lunch held
under the auspices of the island’s Governor
rehabilitation centre for marginalized girls.

Financial Literacy

1st National bank’s annual Shareholders’
Forum ensures that individuals with an
interactive event.
literacy to its customers and employees,
1st National Bank produces a bi-monthly
programme entitled 1st N ational Bank Notes.
The Teller is produced as an electronic
publication which customers can easily
download from the Bank’s website, as well
as a printed version which is provided
free at every branch of 1st National Bank.
1st National Bank Notes is a bi-monthly
programme which details the Bank’s
corporate social responsibility activities and
is hosted by Bank employees.
The Month of October is designated Financial
Information Month by the Eastern Caribbean
Central Bank. 1st National Bank undertakes
that month to further educate the student
population by visiting a number of schools
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knowledge to students and teachers
The Bank also partners with the Junior
Achievement (JA) Program, the world’s
largest organization dedicated to giving
young people the knowledge and skills to
own their economic success. This program is

increasing their expertise in employee
performance measurement under the
Bank’s re-designed and enhanced PMS. As a
consequence, performance appraisals will be
increasingly more objective and will facilitate
individual performance towards achieving
institutional excellence.

3.

represented on the Board of Directors of JA.

potential leaders, were promoted within the
Bank’s supervisory grades in the course of
the year. The promotions were bank-wide

Human Resources

keeping with our practice of inclusivity.

Undoubtedly, the enhancement of the Bank’s
Human Resource base is both critical and
integral to its operations, performance and
general climate of industrial stability. The
year 2012 was no exception, with strong
emphasis again placed on the Corporate
Human Resource Perspective of Learning
& Growth and the corresponding Strategic
Objectives of :• Cultivating an ethic of inspirational
leadership.
•
and empowered employees.
• Creating a professional, safe and comfortable
environment for service delivery.
• Honing collective skills and available
• Recognizing and rewarding excellence.
The following are highlights of some of the
initiatives pursued during the year under
review in order to accomplish the abovecaptioned Learning & Growth Objectives:-

1. The Bank’s draft Management Succession

Policy was approved by the Board of
Directors. The Policy clearly articulates the
Bank’s commitment to engage in a succession
development planning process which
facilitates the building of present and future
leadership from within.

2. Our management team was exposed to the

4.

Additionally, our most recent Memorial
Scholarship holder successfully completed
year one of his three-year management

was given a hands-on orientation to several
aspects of the Bank’s operations.

5.

As part of leadership development, the

assistance to junior and senior management
and senior supervisory personnel pursuing
professional and degree level programmes.

6.

development activities were implemented
throughout the Bank and focused on the
relevant areas of:
• Customer care and improved service
delivery channels;
• Strengthening of credit analysis, mortgage
underwriting and debt recovery skills;
• Best practice in operating and marketing
our on-line credit and debit card products;
• Handling of anti-money laundering (AML)
and Automated Clearing House (ACH)
procedures;
• Communications, human relations and
image enhancement.

7. During the year, the Bank maintained its

third in a series of performance Management
System (PMS) orientation sessions, towards the economies of many regional countries.
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Directors are elected to the Board to serve a
smarter, be more productive and optimize term of three years.
the use of both existing as well as enhanced The table below illustrates the year of election
technological applications introduced in and re-election for the current Board.
2012. In fact the Bank seized the opportunity ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
to further expand its network in the growing SECTION 4 OF BY-LAW NO. 1
north of the island, opening a full-service
business unit at Rodney Bay Marina and

8.

Early in the year all eligible employees

recognition of their contribution to the
of an individual performance based annual
salary increment.

9.

Year-end brought with it the traditional

event at which well deserved recognition
including Branch of the year, Managing
Directors Award, Supervisor of the Year,

We were pleased to have been nominated
again for the St. Lucia Business Award for
Excellence in Human Resource Development.
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MANAGEMENT
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ROBERT FEVRIER - MANAGER PROJECTS & SERVICES
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April 10, 2013
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of
1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited (the Bank)
which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and the statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

April 10, 2013

Management’s
Responsibility
Independent
Auditors’
Report

for the Financial Statements

To the Shareholders of
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited

with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due
to
fraud
or
error.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited (the Bank)
Report
on the to
Financial
necessary
enableStatements
the preparation

which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and the statements of income, comprehensive
income,
changes
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
Auditors’
Responsibility
policies and other explanatory notes.

Our responsibility
is tofor
express
an opinion
on
Management’s
Responsibility
the Financial
Statements

these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is
financial
are freeof from
material
misstatement.
necessary
to statements
enable the preparation
financial
statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
Our
is to express
an opinion onof
these
statements
based onwhether
our audit. We
the responsibility
risks of material
misstatement
thefinancial
financial
statements,
dueconducted
to fraud or error. In making those
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply
risk
assessments,
the
auditor
considers
internal
control
relevant
to
the
entity’s
preparation and fair presentation
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
of the financial
statements
in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
financial
statements are
free from material
misstatement.
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
estimates
mademisstatement
by management,
as well
as evaluating
the
overall
presentation
of the financial statements.
the
risks of material
of the financial
statements,
whether due
to fraud
or error.
In making those
Auditors’ Responsibility

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
audit opinion.
includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

to provide a basis for our

Opinion

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as of December 31, 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended
in accordance
with International
Financial
Reporting
Standards.
In
our opinion,
the accompanying
financial statements
present fairly,
in all material
respects, the financial
Opinion

position of the Bank as of December 31, 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants

Chartered
Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers,

Pointe Seraphine me, P. O. Box 195, Castries, St. Lucia, West Indies

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Pointe Seraphine me, P. O. Box 195, Castries, St. Lucia, West Indies
T: (758) 452-2511, F: (758) 452-1061, www.pwc.com/lc
T: (758) 452-2511, F: (758) 452-1061, www.pwc.com/lc

“PricewaterhouseCoopers”
refers
toCaribbean
the Eastern
Caribbean
firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
“PricewaterhouseCoopers”
refers to the
Eastern
firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A
listing
of theof
partners
of the Eastern
Caribbean
firmCaribbean
is available upon
at the above
address.
Afull
full
listing
the partners
of the
Eastern
firmrequest
is available
upon
request at the above
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address.

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
Note

2012
$

2011
$

5
6
7
8
9

30,422,417
15,884,442
19,461,228
24,212,661
349,247,069

35,171,352
19,851,680
21,622,685
32,232,926
330,217,149

11
11

9,090,011
19,972,054
124,963
13,660,296
5,674,918

10,291,050
14,422,198
1,605,483
15,882,050
4,642,151

487,750,059

485,938,724

402,328,004
5,006,228
223,000
56,518

404,093,164
5,796,896
393,000
72,895

407,613,750

410,355,955

7,971,454
59,312,340
12,852,515

7,971,454
54,194,989
13,416,326

80,136,309

75,582,769

487,750,059

485,938,724

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Income tax recoverable
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets

12
13

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred income tax liability

14
15
16
17

Total liabilities

Equity
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Retained earnings
Reserves

18

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on March 20, 2013

___________________________________ Director

_______________________________ Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Statement of Income
For the year ended December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
Note

2012
$

2011
$

Interest and similar income

20

34,604,450

35,079,860

Interest expense and similar charges

20

(14,023,003)

(13,954,056)

20,581,447

21,125,804

8,164,701

6,268,815

28,746,148

27,394,619

Net interest income
Other operating income

21

Operating income
Other operating expenses

22

(15,368,623)

(14,845,255)

Impairment losses

25

(4,970,913)

(3,700,006)

8,406,612

8,849,358

(1,464,144)

(1,937,947)

6,942,468

6,911,411

1.39

1.38

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

26

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(expressed in EC$ per share)
- basic and diluted

27

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

Profit for the year

2012
$

2011
$

6,942,468

6,911,411

Other comprehensive income
Net fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets

606,600

Devaluation of property

(995,542)

Total other comprehensive loss for the year

(388,942)

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

continuing a legacy of nation building
- 44 -

6,553,526

(50,370)
–
(50,370)
6,861,041
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–

–

Transfer to retained earnings

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

7,971,454

–

–

Dividends relating to 2011

7,971,454

–

–

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2012

–
–
–

–
–
–

7,971,454

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Fair value gains on available-for- sale financial assets
Devaluation of property

7,971,454

Balance at January 1, 2012

–

–

Transfer to retained earnings
7,971,454

–

–

Dividends relating to 2010

7,971,454

–

–

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2011

–
–

7,971,454

Statutory
Reserve
$

–
–

7,971,454

Share
Capital
$

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Fair value losses on available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at January 1, 2011

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Statement of Changes in Equity

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited

3,737,951

(174,869)

–

(995,542)

–
–
(995,542)

4,908,362

4,908,362

15,550

–

–

–
–

4,892,812

Revaluation
Reserve
$

1,143,110

–

–

606,600

–
606,600
–

536,510

536,510

–

–

(50,370)

–
(50,370)

586,880

Revaluation
Reserve –
available –
for-sale
$

59,312,340

174,869

(1,999,986)

6,942,468

6,942,468
–
–

54,194,989

54,194,989

(15,550)

(1,999,986)

6,911,411

6,911,411
–

49,299,114

Retained
Earnings
$

80,136,309

–

(1,999,986)

6,553,526

6,942,468
606,600
(995,542)

75,582,769

75,582,769

–

(1,999,986)

6,861,041

6,911,411
(50,370)

70,721,714

Total
Equity
$

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
Note

2012
$

2011
$

8,406,612

8,849,358

1,269,915
(858,192)
4,970,913
(7,000)
(177,036)
(34,604,450)
14,023,003

1,863,065
2,807
3,700,006
51,000
(114,240)
(35,079,860)
13,954,056

(6,976,235)

(6,773,808)

(183,900)
8,149,933
(22,074,793)
(1,032,767)
(1,575,495)
(894,871)

(3,134,929)
23,809,738
(24,736,972)
2,381,855
15,432,364
(1,124,228)

(24,588,128)

5,854,020

33,101,987
(14,212,668)
–

32,793,743
(13,695,575)
(1,267,734)

(5,698,809)

23,684,454

2,317,583
(8,429,032)
3,977,443
177,036
2,656,625
(1,842,136)

(12,047,333)
(7,011,863)
10,572,049
114,240
18,001
(3,315,795)

(1,142,481)

(11,670,701)

Dividends paid on ordinary shares
Retirement benefit contributions paid

(1,895,783)
(163,000)

(1,898,061)
(185,000)

Net cash used in financing activities

(2,058,783)

(2,083,061)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(8,900,073)

9,930,692

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

31,401,887

21,471,195

22,501,814

31,401,887

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses
Retirement benefit obligations
Dividend income
Interest and similar income
Interest expense and similar charges

12
25
16
21
20
20

Cash flow before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in mandatory reserve deposits with Central Bank
Decrease in loans and advances to financial institutions
Increase in loans and advances to customers
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Decrease)/increase in due to customers
Decrease in other liabilities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Interest and similar income received
Interest expense and similar charges paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of treasury bills, net
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Dividends received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

12

Net cash used in from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

29

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

1

General information
1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited, (the Bank) was incorporated in Saint Lucia in December 1937 and
continued under the Companies Act of 1996. In addition to compliance with the Companies Act of 1996, the
Bank is also subject to the provisions of the Banking Act of Saint Lucia No. 34 of 2006. The Bank commenced
trading in January 1938 and provides retail banking services including the acceptance of deposits, granting of
loans, the provision of foreign exchange services, commercial banking services and electronic banking services.
The Bank has six branches and two bureaux de change. The registered office and principal place of business of
the Bank is #21 Bridge Street, Castries, Saint Lucia.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of land and buildings and available-for-sale financial assets.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
a) New standard issued and effective for the financial year beginning January 1, 2012:
There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after January 1, 2012 that would be expected to have a material impact on the group.
b) New standards and amendment issued but not yet effective
The following standard and amendment have been issued and are mandatory for the Bank’s accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013:
Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ relates to other comprehensive income. The main
change resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not address which items are presented in OCI.
IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was amended in June 2011. The impact on the Bank will be as follows: to eliminate
the corridor approach and recognise all actuarial gains and losses in OCI as they occur; to immediately recognise
all past service costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount
that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The Bank is yet to
assess the full impact of the amendment.
IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted
by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP.
(1)
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1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
b) New standard and amendment issued but not yet effective…continued
IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39
that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements.
The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The Bank is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact
and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
c) Early adoption of standards
The Bank did not early-adopt any new or amended standards in 2012.
2.2 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.
(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of income.
2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
three months maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and non-restricted balances with the Central
Bank and deposits with other banks.
2.4 Sale and repurchase agreements
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded as loans and advances to
financial institutions or customers, as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated
as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.
2.5 Financial assets and liabilities
The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(2)
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.5.1 Financial assets
(a) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than: (a) those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the short term, which are
classified as held for trading, and those that the Bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through
profit or loss; (b) those that the Bank upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or (c) those for which
the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.
Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value – which is the cash consideration to originate or
purchase the loan including any transaction costs – and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet as loans and advances to financial
institutions or customers. Interest on loans is included in the statement of income and is reported as ‘Interest and
similar income’. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying
value of the loan and recognised in the statement of income as ‘Impairment losses on loans and advances’.
(b) Held-to-maturity
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than: (a)
those that the Bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that the
Bank designates as available for sale; and (c) those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.
These are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured
subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included in the statement of income and reported as ‘Interest and
similar income’. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying
value of the investment and recognised in the statement of income.
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale investments are financial assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time,
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices
or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to- maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which is the cash consideration including
any transaction costs, and measured subsequently at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the
financial asset is derecognised. If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of
income. However, interest is calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign currency gains and losses
on monetary assets classified as available for sale are recognised in the statement of income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the statement of income in ‘Dividend income’ when the
Bank’s right to receive payment is established. Available-for-sale equity securities that are not listed are carried at
cost less impairment since the Bank is not able to reliably measure the fair value of the equity securities and the
future cash flows relating to the securities cannot be reliably estimated.
(d) Recognition
The Bank uses trade date accounting for regular way contracts when recording financial asset transactions.
Financial assets that are transferred to a third party but do not qualify for derecognition are presented in the
balance sheet as ‘Assets pledged as collateral’, if the transferee has the right to sell or repledge them.
(3)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.5.2 Financial liabilities
The Bank’s holding in financial liabilities is at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
extinguished.
(a) Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category and are
measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are deposits from customers.
2.5.3 Determination of fair value
The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If there is no active market
for a financial asset (and for unlisted securities), the Bank establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.
2.5.4 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets have
ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have not been transferred, the Bank tests
control to ensure that continuing involvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does not prevent
derecognition). Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.
2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings comprise mainly branches and offices. Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based
on valuations by external independent valuers done every 5 years, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method for buildings and the
reducing balance method for all other property, plant and equipment to allocate their cost or revalued amounts
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment
Motor vehicles

2%
10%
15- 25%
20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the statement of income.
(4)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.7 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
The criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:







Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for example, equity ratio, net income percentage of sales);
Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial asset has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.
The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.
When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for
loan impairment in the statement of income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of income.

(5)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.7 Impairment of financial assets…continued
(b) Assets classified as available for sale
The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in comprehensive income – is removed from comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of income on equity instruments are not
reversed through the statement of income. If in subsequent periods, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of
income.
(c) Renegotiated loans
Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans. In subsequent
years, the asset is considered to be past due and disclosed only if renegotiated.
2.8 Impairment of other non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).
2.9 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
2.10 Guarantees and letters of credit
Guarantees and letters of credit comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers.
The Bank expects most guarantees and letters of credit to be settled simultaneously with the reimbursement from
the customers.
Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms and the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation. No
receivable for the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the bank’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
IAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based
on experience of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of management.
The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the
liability relating to guarantees is reported in the statement of income within other operating expenses.

(6)
continuing a legacy of nation building
- 52 -

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
2.12 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligation
The Bank operates a defined benefit plan for all employees. The assets of the plan are held separately. The pension
plan is funded through payments from employees and the Bank, taking account of the recommendations of
independent qualified actuaries. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
securities that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess of
the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation are charged or credited to
income over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives. Past-service costs are recognized
immediately in the statement of income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
(b) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Bank recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Bank’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The Bank recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.13 Income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property, plant and
equipment. If the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law is recognised as an expense in the period in
which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
2.14

Share capital

(a) Share issue costs
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds.
(b) Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders.
Dividends for the year declared after the balance sheet date are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
2.15 Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense for all interest bearing financial instruments are recognised within “interest income”
and “interest expense” in the statement of income using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies…continued
2.16 Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. Loan
commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Performance linked fees or fee components
are recognised when the performance criteria are fulfilled.
2.17 Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the statement of income when the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.
2.18

Leases

(a) The Bank is the lessee
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
(b) The Bank is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the assets are included in the balance sheet based on the
nature of the assets. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight line basis.
2.19 Financial instruments
Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash resources, investment securities, loans and
advances to customers, loans and advance to financial institutions, deposits with other banks, deposits from
banks and due to customers. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy
statement associated with each item.
2.20 Comparatives
Except when a standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed
with comparative information.

(9)
continuing a legacy of nation building
- 55 -

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

3

Financial risk management
The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Bank’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Bank’s financial performance.
The Bank’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information
systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.
Risk management is mainly carried out by the Finance Department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Management identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank’s
operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk. In addition, internal audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the control environment.
The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk. Market risk
includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.
3.1 Credit risk
The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the
Bank by failing to discharge their contractual obligation to the Bank. Significant changes in the economy, or in the
health of a particular industry segment that represents a concentration in the Bank’s portfolio, could result in
losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date. Management therefore carefully
manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and
advances, and investment activities that bring debt securities and other bills into the Bank’s asset portfolio. There
is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments such as loan commitments. The credit risk is managed
and controlled by management who reports to the Board of Directors.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.1 Credit risk measurement
(a) Loans and advances
Eastern Caribbean Central Bank prudential guidelines are embedded in the Bank’s daily operational management.
The operational measurements can be contrasted with impairment allowances required under IAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date (the ‘incurred loss model’).
The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using the Eastern Caribbean Central
Bank prudential guidelines. Clients of the Bank are segmented into five rating classes. The Bank’s rating scale,
which is shown below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. This means that, in
principle, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes. The Bank
regularly validates the performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard to default events.
Bank’s internal ratings scale
Bank’s rating

Description of the grade

1
2
3
4
5

Pass
Special Mention
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

(b) Debt securities and other bills
For debt securities and other bills, external rating such as Caricris or their equivalents are used by management
for management of the credit risk exposures.
3.1.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified − in particular,
to individual counterparties and groups, and to industries.
The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to the industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a
revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review by the Board of Directors.
The exposure to any one borrower including banks and brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering onand off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items. Actual exposures
against limits are monitored daily.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies…continued
Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(a) Collateral
The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is
the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The Bank implements guidelines on
the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for
loans and advances are:




Mortgages over residential properties;
Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable; and
Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolving individual credit
facilities are generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the Bank will seek additional
collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans
and advances.
Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the
instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured.
(b) Credit-related commitments
The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial
letters of credit – which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorising a third party
to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions – are collateralised
by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.
Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of
loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments
because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term
commitments.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.3 Impairment and provisioning policies
The impairment provision shown in the balance sheet at year-end is derived from each of the five internal
rating grades. The table below shows the percentage of the Bank’s on-balance sheet items relating to loans and
advances and the associated impairment provision for each of the Bank’s internal rating categories:
2012
Loans and Impairment
advances
provision
(%)
(%)
Bank’s rating
1. Pass
2. Special mention
3. Sub-standard
4. Doubtful
5. Loss

84.4%
0.8%
10.4%
2.3%
2.1%

2011
Loans and Impairment
advances
provision
(%)
(%)

13.5%
0.4%
40.8%
17.6%
27.7%

85.4%
1.4%
8.5%
2.9%
1.8%

24.7%
0.2%
28.8%
19.0%
27.3%

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists,
based on the following criteria set out by the Bank:







Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity ratio, net income percentage of sales);
Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Bank’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets that are above materiality thresholds at least
annually or more regularly when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually
assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-by-case
basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral
held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.4
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
Maximum exposure
2012
2011
$
$
Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers:
− Overdraft
− Demand loans
− Promissory notes
− Mortgages
− Credit cards
Investments securities:
− available for sale – debt securities
− held to maturity
Other assets

15,884,442
19,461,228
24,212,661

19,851,680
21,622,685
32,232,926

20,096,915
161,606,771
7,965,087
158,346,809
1,231,487

20,671,238
151,344,654
4,925,672
153,275,585
−

6,095,581
19,972,054
4,188,474

7,109,906
14,422,198
3,792,183

439,061,509

429,248,727

442,658
22,991,935

3,831,933
27,757,273

23,434,593

31,589,206

462,496,102

460,837,933

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as
follows:
Financial guarantees
Loan commitments and other credit related facilities

At December 31

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank at December 31, 2012 and
2011, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the balance sheet.
As shown above, 80% of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances to financial institutions
and customers (2011 - 79%); 6% represents investments in debt securities (2011 - 5%).
Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the
Bank resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio based on the following:
 85% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top two grades of the internal rating system
(2011 - 87%);
 Demand loans which represent the largest percentage of the portfolio, followed by mortgage loans, are backed
by collateral;
 51% of the net loans and advances portfolio are considered to be neither past due nor impaired (2011 - 55%);
 The Bank continues to grant loans and advances in accordance with its lending policies and guidelines; and
 4% (2011 - 5%) of the investments in debt securities and other bills have at least an A- credit rating. Many
issuers in the region are not graded, consequently 37% of investments are not rated, compared to 56% last
year.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.5 Loans and advances
Loans and advances are summarised as follows:
2012
$

2011
$

Loans and advances to customers
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired

177,964,977
135,024,458
54,063,797

183,187,963
107,934,045
54,421,998

Gross

367,053,232

345,544,006

Less: allowance for impairment (Notes 9 and 10)

(17,806,163)

(15,326,857)

Net

349,247,069

330,217,149

24,212,661

33,232,926

Loans and advances to financial institutions
Neither past due nor impaired (Note 8)

(a) Loans and advances neither past due or impaired
The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed
by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Bank.
Demand Promissory
loans
notes
$
$

Total Loans
and advances
Mortgages to customers
$
$

Overdrafts
$

Credit
card
$

Grades
1. Pass
2. Special mention
3. Sub-standard
4. Doubtful
5. Loss

18,553,531
904,788
640,895
–
–

1,018,115
–
–
–
–

69,264,835
524,430
–
–
–

3,022,412
–
–
–
–

83,818,756 175,677,649
217,215
1,646,433
–
640,895
–
–
–
–

Total

20,099,214

1,018,115

69,789,265

3,022,412

84,035,971 177,964,977

Grades
1. Pass
2. Special mention
3. Sub-standard
4. Doubtful
5. Loss

19,625,913
606,309
441,043
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

79,317,864
214,442
–
–
–

3,066,466
–
–
–
–

78,806,548 180,816,791
1,109,378
1,930,129
–
441,043
–
–
–
–

Total

20,673,265

–

79,532,306

3,066,466

79,915,926 183,187,963

December 31, 2012
Loans and advances
to customers

December 31, 2011
Loans and advances
to customers
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.5

Loans and advances…continued

Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to financial institutions were graded 1 (Pass) as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
Loans and advances less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired, unless other information is available
to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans and advances by class to customers net of unearned interest that
were past due but not impaired were as follows:
Total Loans
Credit
Demand
Promissory
and advances
cards
loans
notes
to customers
Mortgages
$
$
$
$
$
December 31, 2012
Past due up to 30 days
–
22,947,602
675,578
30,540,851
54,164,031
Past due 30-60 days
129,809
22,894,001
3,082,390
1,162,523
27,268,723
Past due 60-90 days
61,745
3,465,295
35,118
6,418,693
9,980,851
Past due over 90 days
21,817
24,300,220
500,659
18,788,157
43,610,853
Total

213,371

73,607,118

4,293,745

56,910,224

135,024,458

Fair value of collateral

–

144,641,267

11,837,332

120,031,250

276,509,849

December 31, 2011
Past due up to 30 days
Past due 30-60 days
Past due 60-90 days
Past due over 90 days

–
–
–
–

19,512,618
8,899,072
2,022,937
22,724,659

654,778
279,926
147,361
192,049

22,419,575
14,783,770
3,934,790
12,362,510

42,586,971
23,962,768
6,105,088
35,279,218

Total

–

53,159,286

1,274,114

53,500,645

107,934,045

Fair value of collateral

–

118,505,822

4,647,178

111,339,070

234,492,070

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques
commonly used for the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to
market price or indexes of similar assets. There were no overdrafts past due but not impaired.
(c) Loans and advances individually impaired
The table below shows the gross amount of individually impaired loans and advances to customers by grades
before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held.
2012
2011
$
$
Individually impaired loans
Grades:
1. Pass
2. Special mention
3. Sub-standard
4. Doubtful
5. Loss

546,046
20,614
37,602,058
7,952,927
7,942,152

9,047,030
18,082
29,094,389
9,810,315
6,452,182

Total

54,063,797

54,421,998

Fair value of collateral

78,261,492

86,517,685
(16)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.1.5

Loans and advances…continued

(d) Loans and advances renegotiated
Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
reset to a normal status and managed together with other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and
practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of local management, indicate that
payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review. Restructuring is most
commonly applied to term loans, in particular customer finance loans. Renegotiated loans that would
otherwise be past due or impaired as at December 31, 2012 amounted to $2,931,899 (2011- $2,400,863).
3.1.6
Debt securities, treasury bills and other eligible bills
The table below presents an analysis of debt securities, treasury bills and other eligible bills by rating agency
designation at December 31, 2012 and 2011, based on Caricris or their equivalent:
At December 31, 2012
Treasury
bills
$

Investment securities
Held-toAvailablematurity
for-sale
$
$

Total
$

AA- to AA+
CariBBB+
Unrated

–
13,535,187
5,926,041

2,032,219
13,189,729
4,750,106

–
–
6,095,851

2,032,219
26,724,916
16,771,998

Total

19,461,228

19,972,054

6,095,851

45,529,133

Investment securities
Held-toAvailablematurity
for-sale
$
$

Total
$

At December 31, 2011
Treasury
bills
$
AA- to AA+
CariBBB+
Unrated

–
7,743,181
13,879,504

2,032,219
8,149,677
4,240,302

–
–
7,109,906

2,032,219
15,892,858
25,229,712

Total

21,622,685

14,422,198

7,109,906

43,154,789

3.1.7 Repossessed collateral
During 2012, the Bank obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as security, as follows:
Nature of assets

Carrying
amount
$

Vehicles

153,600

Repossessed vehicles are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding
indebtedness.
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258,887
–
1,371,184
3,876
2,486,022
–
–
–

300,081
–
3,731,790
19,971
2,616,568
–
–
–
6,668,410

77,920

–
–
–
–
–
252,459
6,678,763
3,211,354
50,239,679
–

As at December 31, 2012

Credit commitments

–

–

24,212,661

98,312

4,119,969

–
–

–
–

227,756

36,916,974

1,708,839
13,189,729
–

1,272,098
–
1,285,080
–
–

–

–
19,461,228

–

–
–

Personal
$

–

–
–

Other
industries
$

–
–
–

4,134,553
103,562
977,120

2,499,777

12,558,806

7,972,021

54,235,445 188,762,535 98,118,767

–
–
–

6,179,044
3,438,228 8,648,577
–
862,041
369,446
42,205,027 59,435,113 53,578,577
38,927
4,675,594 3,226,719
5,812,447 120,351,559 27,080,213

–

–
–

Professional
and other
services
Tourism Government
$
$
$

15,884,442
–

Manufacturing
$

Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial
institutions
Loans and advances to customers:
- Overdraft
- Credit cards
- Demand loans
- Promissory notes
- Mortgages
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Other assets

Financial
institutions
$

(18)

23,434,592

439,061,779

6,095,851
19,972,054
4,188,474

20,096,915
1,231,487
161,606,771
7,965,087
158,346,809

24,212,661

15,884,442
19,461,228

Total
$

(b) Industry sectors
The following table breaks down the Bank’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors of our counterparties.

(a) Geographical sectors
The Bank operates primarily in St. Lucia and the exposure to credit risk is concentrated in this area.
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Credit commitments

As at December 31, 2011

Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial
institutions
Loans and advances to customers:
- Overdraft
- Demand loans
- Promissory notes
- Mortgages
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Other assets
–
–
–

–
–
–

252,459
6,168,966
2,621,989

80,550

15,000

1,145,340

3,628,891

409,170
1,207,883
17,207
1,994,631

156,955
5,720,865
–
821,572

–
–
–
–

6,699,392

–

–

32,232,926

61,128,020

–
–

51,553

33,057,616

1,899,635
8,149,677
–

–
1,385,619
–
–

–

–
21,622,685

–

–
–

Personal
$

–
–
–

4,957,812
103,555
1,170,194

10,193,694
56,176,375
387,763
29,624,698

–

–
–

Other
industries
$

9,202,962

13,778,071

7,315,730

36,082,846 186,037,871 102,614,091

–
–
–

6,525,535
3,385,884
23,044,960 63,808,952
50,936
4,469,766
6,461,415 114,373,269

–

–
–

Professional
and other
services
Tourism Government
$
$
$

–
–

Manufacturing
$

19,851,680
–

Financial
institutions
$

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure…continued
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31,589,206

429,248,727

7,109,906
14,422,198
3,792,183

20,671,238
151,344,654
4,925,672
153,275,585

32,232,926

19,851,680
21,622,685

Total
$
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Financial risk management…continued
3.2
Market risk
The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions
in interest rate and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Bank’s exposures to market risks primarily arise from the interest rate management
of the Bank’s retail and commercial banking assets and liabilities and equity risks arising from the Bank’s
available-for-sale investments.
3.2.1 Price risk
The Bank is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Bank and classified on
the balance sheet as available for sale. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the
Bank diversifies its portfolio.
At December 31, 2012, if equity securities prices had been 5% higher/lower with all variable held constant
comprehensive income for the year would have been $74,575 higher/lower (2011 - $44,245 higher/lower) as a
result of the increase/decrease in fair value of available for sale equity securities.
3.2.2 Foreign exchange risk
The Bank takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Board of Directors sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in
total which are monitored daily. The Bank’s exposure to currency risk is minimal since most of its assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are held in United States dollars. The exchange rate of the Eastern Caribbean
dollar (EC$) to the United States dollar (US$) has been formally pegged at EC$2.70 = US$1.00 since 1976. The
following table summarises the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at December 31, 2012.
Included in the table are the Bank’s financial instruments at carrying amount, categorised by currency.
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–
–
–

7,462,889
17,944,109
4,188,474
446,878,621
401,516,976
5,006,228
406,523,204
40,355,417
23,434,593

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet positions

Credit commitments

808,668

808,668
–

–

–

2,430,958 20,249,291

2,360

–

–

1,627,122
2,027,945
–

2,433,318 21,057,959

–
–
–

2,360
–

506,947

USD

121,876
261,498
2,311,442 6,739,128
– 10,402,266
–
–
–
–

EURO

–
–

506,947

261,498
245,449
–
–
–

29,692,395
5,072,062
9,058,962
24,212,661
349,247,069

CAD

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Other assets

As at December 31, 2012

ECD

Concentration of currency risk – on and off balance sheet financial instruments
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–

1,397,330

–

–
–

1,397,330

–
–
–

35,741
1,361,589
–
–
–

GBP

–

69,198

–

–
–

69,198

–
–
–

–
69,198
–
–
–

TTD

–

134,983

–

–
–

(21)

23,434,593

65,144,124

407,334,232

402,328,004
5,006,228

472,478,356

9,090,011
19,972,054
4,188,474

–
–
–
134,983

30,422,417
15,884,442
19,461,228
24,212,661
349,247,069

TOTAL

49,409
85,574
–
–
–

BD
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447,253,211
403,402,178
5,796,896
409,199,074
38,054,137
31,589,206

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet positions

Credit commitments

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank
34,794,363
Due from other banks
4,979,291
Treasury bills
18,469,314
Loans and advances to financial institutions 32,232,926
Loans and advances to customers
330,217,149
Investment securities
- available-for-sale
8,345,787
- held-to-maturity
14,422,198
Other assets
3,792,183

As at December 31, 2011

ECD

2,313

–

–

1,945,263
–
–

–
–
–

688,673

688,673
–

–

–
–

–

–

–

2,892,090 14,420,777 1,841,910

2,313
–

–
–

358,031

GBP

208,101
10,390
9,802,715 1,831,520
3,153,371
–
–
–
–
–

USD

2,894,403 15,109,450 1,841,910

–
–
–

–
–
–
358,031

62,220
2,832,183
–
–
–

EURO

33,907
324,124
–
–
–

CAD

Concentration of currency risk – on and off balance sheet financial instruments…continued

3.2.2

Financial risk management…continued

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2012

Notes to Financial Statements

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited

–

7,163

–

–
–

7,163

–
–
–

–
7,163
–
–
–

TTD

–

137,055

–

–
–

(22)

31,589,206

57,711,163

409,890,060

404,093,164
5,796,896

467,601,223

10,291,050
14,422,198
3,792,183

–
–
–
137,055

35,171,352
19,851,680
21,622,685
32,232,926
330,217,149

TOTAL

62,371
74,684
–
–
–

BD

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

3

Financial risk management…continued
3.2.3 Interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise.

(23)
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236,339,644
–
236,339,644

(196,551,343) (25,754,500) (46,091,148) 62,258,151

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total interest repricing gap

42,119,580

42,119,580
–

93,693,383

93,693,383
–

47,602,235

39,788,301

Total financial assets

16,365,080

–
6,726,051
–

–
–
–

5,767,636
52,000
–

4,774,408

4,774,408
–

67,032,559

–
11,159,099
–

–
–
9,015,367
16,755,971
15,104,846

–
–
–
–
55,873,460

1-5
years
$

–
–
10,445,861
3,243,372
2,675,847

3-12
months
$

–
4,717,186
–
4,213,318
25,038,161

1-3
months
$

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Other assets

As at December 31, 2012

Up to
1 month
$

30,407,217

–

(24)

253,002,555

25,400,989
5,006,228

50,174,070

2,909,479
–
5,674,918

30,422,417
11,167,256
–
–
–

Noninterest
bearing
$

–
–

253,002,555

412,896
2,034,904
–

–
–
–
–
250,554,755

Over 5
years
$

407,334,232

402,328,004
5,006,228

473,964,800

9,090,011
19,972,054
5,674,918

30,422,417
15,884,442
19,461,228
24,212,661
349,247,069

Total
$

3.2.3 Interest rate risk
The table below summarizes the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Bank’s financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorized by
the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Financial risk management…continued

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2012

Notes to Financial Statements

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
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Interest rate risk…continued

236,645,071
–
236,645,071

(181,126,428) (27,512,893) (46,840,695) 70,361,203

Total financial liabilities

Total interest repricing gap

41,508,305 101,933,809

41,508,305 101,933,809
–
–

55,093,114

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

13,995,412

55,518,643

Total financial assets

1,324,508

1,324,508
–

71,685,711

–
11,789,092
–

–
2,158,555
–

–
–
–

6,547,156
474,551
–

–
–
–
–
59,896,619

1-5
years
$

–
–
13,539,324
25,268,460
14,126,775

3-12
months
$

–
–
5,141,264
–
8,854,148

1-3
months
$

–
12,188,028
2,942,097
6,964,466
26,402,345

Up to
1 month
$

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks
Treasury bills
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Other assets

As at December 31, 2011

3.2.3

Financial risk management…continued

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2012

Notes to Financial Statements

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited

28,478,367

–

(25)

221,500,013

22,681,471
5,796,896

50,658,298

3,181,143
–
4,642,151

35,171,352
7,663,652
–
–
–

Noninterest
bearing
$

–
–

221,500,013

562,751
–
–

–
–
–
–
220,937,262

Over 5
years
$

409,890,060

404,093,164
5,796,896

468,451,191

10,291,050
14,422,198
4,642,151

35,171,352
19,851,680
21,622,685
32,232,926
330,217,149

Total
$

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

3

Financial risk management…continued
3.2.3 Interest rate risk…continued
The Bank’s fair value interest rate risk arises from debt securities classified as available for sale. At
December 31, 2012 if market interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all variables held
constant, comprehensive income for the year would have been $129,819 lower/$127,441 higher (2011 $171,168 lower/$224,794 higher) as a result of the decrease/increase in fair value of available for sale debt
securities.
Cash flow interest rate risk arises from loans and advances to customers at variable rates. At December 31,
2012 if variable interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been $2,149,404 higher/lower (2011 - $2,062,378 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on variable rate loans.
3.3
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.
3.3.1 Liquidity risk management process
The Bank's liquidity is managed and monitored by the Finance Department. This includes:


Daily to weekly monitoring to ensure that requirements can be met. This includes the replenishment of
funds as they mature or as borrowed by customers. The Bank ensures that sufficient funds are held in the
one to thirty day maturity bucket to satisfy liquidity requirements.



Maintaining a portfolio of marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any
unforeseen liquidity problems. Additionally, the investment portfolio is fairly diversified by currency,
geography, provider, product and term.



Weekly monitoring of the balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements.



Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

3.3.2 Funding approach
Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed to maintain a wide diversification by currency, geography,
provider, product and term.

(26)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.3.3 Non-derivative cash flows
The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilities and
assets held for managing liquidity risk by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.
Up to
1 month
$

1-3
months
$

3-12
months
$

1-5
years
$

Over
5 years
$

Total
$

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

261,764,956 42,394,146
–
5,006,228

96,230,152
–

5,104,287
–

–
–

405,493,541
5,006,228

Total liabilities
(Contractual maturity dates)

266,771,184 42,394,146

96,230,152

5,104,287

–

410,499,769

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk
(Contractual maturity dates)

67,360,814 26,070,009

67,032,559 253,028,584

486,826,481

As at December 31, 2012

73,334,515

As at December 31, 2011
Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities

254,097,100 41,800,536
5,796,896
–

109,858,517
–

1,399,420
–

–
–

407,155,573
5,796,896

Total liabilities
(Contractual maturity dates)

259,893,996 41,800,536

109,858,517

1,399,420

–

412,952,469

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk
(Contractual maturity dates)

81,964,258 26,934,215

71,685,712 221,315,641

482,918,161

81,018,335

(27)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.3.4 Assets held for managing liquidity risk
Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan commitments include cash, central
bank balances, items in the course of collection and treasury and other eligible bills; loans and advances to
financial institutions; and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of business, a proportion of
customer loans contractually repayable within one year will be extended. The Bank would also be able to meet
unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and accessing additional funding sources.
3.3.5

Off-balance sheet items

(a) Loan commitments
The dates of the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-balance sheet financial instruments that commit it
to extend credit to customers and other facilities (Note 31), are summarised in the table below.
(b) Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
Financial guarantees (Note 31), are also included below based on the earliest contractual maturity date.

As at December 31, 2012
Loan commitments
Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
Total
As at December 31, 2011
Loan commitments
Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
Total
3.4

1 year
$

1-5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

Total
$

18,577,892

4,408,847

5,196

22,991,935

–

330,000

112,658

442,658

18,577,892

4,738,847

117,854

23,434,593

19,605,041

8,106,417

45,815

27,757,273

–

3,684,275

147,658

3,831,933

19,605,041

11,790,692

193,473

31,589,206

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed upon between
knowledgeable willing parties who are under no compulsion to act and is best evidenced by a quoted market
value, if one exists. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments.
The fair values of cash resources, other assets and liabilities, cheques and other items in transit and due to
other banks are assumed to approximate their carrying values due to their short term nature.
(i) Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair values of loans and advances
represent the discounted amount of estimated future cash flow expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rate to determine fair value.

(28)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.4

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities…continued

(ii) Investment securities
Investment securities include only interest bearing assets held to maturity; assets classified as available-forsale are measured at fair value except for available-for-sale equity securities – unlisted which are carried at
cost less impairment. The fair value of equity securities carried at cost less impairment is not disclosed as it
can not be reliably estimated (Note 11). The fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted
market prices for securities with similar credit maturity and yield characteristics.
(iii) Due to customers
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the
amount repayable on demand.
Deposits payable on a fixed date are at rates which reflect market conditions and are assumed to have fair values
which approximate carrying values.
The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not
presented on the Bank’s balance sheet at their fair value.
Carrying value
2012
2011
$
$

Fair value
2012
$

2011
$

Financial assets
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers:
− Overdraft
− Demand loans
− Promissory notes
− Mortgages
− Credit cards
Investment securities
− Held to maturity

24,212,661
349,247,069
20,096,915
161,606,771
7,965,087
158,346,809
1,231,487

32,232,926
330,217,149
20,671,238
151,344,654
4,925,672
153,275,585
−

24,212,661
361,242,252
20,096,916
167,770,428
7,782,198
164,361,223
1,231,487

32,232,926
340,489,816
20,671,238
161,057,690
7,831,389
150,929,499
−

19,972,054

14,422,198

18,708,394

13,613,759

402,328,004
153,509,409
215,921,898
32,896,697

404,093,164
165,478,049
208,997,652
29,617,463

402,338,350
153,519,755
215,921,898
32,896,697

404,122,708
165,507,593
208,997,652
29,617,463

Financial liabilities
Due to customers:
− Time deposits
− Savings accounts
− Demand accounts

(29)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.4

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities…continued

(b) Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:
 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This level includes listed
equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges.
 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
 Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant unobservable components.
This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank considers relevant and
observable market prices in its valuations where possible.
3.4.1 Assets measured at fair value
December 31, 2012

Level 1
$

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

Total
$

- Investment securities - debt
- Investment securities - equity

–
–

2,507,430
1,491,500

3,588,421
–

6,095,851
1,491,500

Total assets

–

3,998,930

3,588,421

7,587,351

- Investment securities - debt
- Investment securities - equity

–
–

3,006,889
884,900

4,103,017
–

7,109,906
884,900

Total assets

–

3,891,789

4,103,017

7,994,806

Available-for-sale financial assets

December 31, 2011
Available-for-sale financial assets

(30)
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Financial risk management…continued
Reconciliation of Level 3 Items
Available-for-sale
financial assets
Debt securities
$
At January 1, 2012

4,103,017

Interest received
Settlements
Loss on investment
Increase in impairment losses provision

(239,523)
(382,968)
(429,487)
537,382

At December 31, 2012

3,588,421

At January 1, 2011

4,921,620

Additions
Interest received
Settlements

96,275
(427,815)
(487,063)

At December 31, 2011

4,103,017

The following table shows the sensitivity of level 3 measurements to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions:
Reflected in equity
Favourable Unfavourable
changes
changes
$
$
At December 31, 2012
Available-for-sale financial assets

68,455

(72,810)

The above favourable and unfavourable changes are calculated independently from each other.

(31)
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Financial risk management…continued
3.5 Capital management
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of
balance sheets, are:
 To comply with the capital requirements set by the Eastern Caribbean Central Bank;
 to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
 to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Bank’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines developed by the East Caribbean Central Bank (‘the Authority’) for
supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the Authority on a quarterly basis.
The Authority requires each bank or banking group to: (a) hold the minimum level of the regulatory capital of
$5,000,000 and (b) maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted asset (the ‘Basel ratio’) at or
above the minimum indicated in the prudential guidelines of 8%.
The Bank’s regulatory capital as managed by management is divided into two tiers:
 Tier 1 capital: share capital, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained earnings.
 Tier 2 capital: qualifying subordinated loan capital, collective impairment allowances and unrealised gains
arising on the fair valuation of equity instruments held as available for sale.
The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to the
nature of − and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with − each asset and
counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for offbalance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.
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Financial risk management…continued
3.5 Capital management…continued
The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During those two years, the Bank complied with all of the externally
imposed capital requirements.
2012
$

2011
$

Tier 1 capital
Share capital
Statutory reserve
Retained earnings

7,971,454
7,971,454
59,312,340

7,971,454
7,971,454
54,194,989

Total qualifying Tier 1 capital

75,255,248

70,137,897

Tier 2 capital
Revaluation reserve – available-for-sale investments
Revaluation reserve – property, plant and equipment

1,143,110
3,737,951

536,510
4,908,362

Total qualifying Tier 2 capital

4,881,061

5,444,872

80,136,309

75,582,769

Risk-weighted assets:
On-balance sheet
Off-balance sheet

333,062,953
4,642,700

319,111,409
6,265,175

Total risk-weighted assets

337,705,653

325,376,584

Capital adequacy ratio

22%

22%

Basel ratio

24%

23%

Total regulatory capital

The capital adequacy ratio is calculated as total qualifying Tier 1 capital divided by total risk-weighted assets.
The Basel ratio is calculated as total regulatory capital divided by total risk-weighted assets.
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Cash and balances with Central Bank
2012
$

2011
$

Cash in hand
Balances with Central Bank other than mandatory
reserve deposits

6,617,372

7,135,824

–

4,414,383

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 29)

6,617,372

11,550,207

Mandatory reserve deposits with Central Bank

23,805,045

23,621,145

30,422,417

35,171,352

Pursuant to Section 17 of the Banking Act of St. Lucia No. 34 of 2006, the Bank is required to maintain in cash
and deposits with the Central Bank reserve balances in relation to the deposit liabilities of the institution.
Mandatory reserve deposits are not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations. The balances with the
Central Bank are non-interest bearing.

6

Due from other banks
2012
$

2011
$

Items in the course of collection from other banks
Placements with other banks

4,039,037
11,845,405

4,006,195
15,845,485

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 29)

15,884,442

19,851,680

The weighted average effective interest rate in respect of interest bearing deposits at December 31, 2012 was
0.17% (2011 – 0.10%).

7

Treasury bills

Treasury bills

2012
$

2011
$

19,461,228

21,622,685

The Bank has invested in treasury bills in the Governments of Saint Lucia, Saint Vincent, Grenada and Antigua.
The weighted average effective interest rate of treasury bills in 2012 was 5.56% (2011 – 5.87%). All treasury
bills have fixed interest rates. Treasury bills mature within one year.
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8

Loans and advances to financial institutions

Reverse repos

2012
$

2011
$

24,212,661

32,232,926

Reverse repos are securities purchased under agreements to resell. The weighted average effective interest rate
of the reverse repos in 2012 was 4.63% (2011 – 4.69%). Reverse repos mature within one year.
Allowance account for losses on loans and advances to financial institutions as at December 31, 2012 and
2011 was nil.

9

Loans and advances to customers

Overdraft
Demand loans
Promissory notes
Mortgages
Credit cards

Less provision for impairment of loans and
advances (Note 10)

Current
Non-current

2012
$

2011
$

20,099,214
175,368,873
8,970,744
161,382,914
1,231,487

20,673,265
163,188,510
6,130,829
155,551,402
–

367,053,232

345,544,006

(17,806,163)

(15,326,857)

349,247,069

330,217,149

42,818,854
306,428,215

49,383,268
280,833,881

349,247,069

330,217,149

The weighted average effective interest rate on productive loans stated at amortised cost at December 31, 2012
was 9.06% (2011 – 9.23%) and productive overdraft stated at amortised cost was 11.57% (2011 -11.84%).
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10 Provision for impairment of loans and advances
Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and advances by class is as follows:
Overdraft
$

Demand
loans
$

Promissory
notes
$

Mortgage
$

Total
$

Balance at January 1, 2012
Provision for loan impairment (Note 25)
Loans written off during the year

2,027
272
–

11,843,856
2,381,035
(462,789)

1,205,157
2,275,817 15,326,857
(142,246) 1,988,664 4,227,725
(57,254) (1,228,376) (1,748,419)

At December 31, 2012

2,299

13,762,102

1,005,657

3,036,105 17,806,163

74,213
(72,186)
–

10,844,466
2,482,671
(1,483,281)

1,462,947
(186,265)
(71,525)

2,713,478 15,095,104
132,867 2,357,087
(570,528) (2,125,334)

2,027

11,843,856

1,205,157

2,275,817 15,326,857

Balance at January 1, 2011
Provision for loan impairment (Note 25)
Loans written off during the year
At December 31, 2011

The total impairment provision for loans and advances to customers is $17,806,163 (2011 - $15,326,857) of
which $16,705,584 (2011 - $14,529,369) represents the individually impaired loans and the remaining amount of
$1,100,579 (2011 - $797,488) represents the portfolio provision.

11 Investment securities
Available-for-sale
Equity securities – at fair value
- Listed
Equity securities – at cost
- Unlisted
Allowance for impairment
Debt securities – at fair value:
- Listed
- Unlisted
Allowance for impairment

2012
$

2011
$

1,491,500

884,900

3,209,600
(1,706,940)

3,152,100
(855,856)

2,507,430
3,673,102
(84,681)

3,006,889
4,725,080
(622,063)

Total securities: available-for-sale

9,090,011

10,291,050

Held-to-maturity
Debt securities - at amortised cost:
- Listed
- Unlisted

13,194,003
6,778,051

8,126,896
6,295,302

Total securities: held-to-maturity

19,972,054

14,422,198

Current
Non-current

15,539,847
13,522,218

13,282,114
11,431,134

29,062,065

24,713,248
(37)
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11 Investment securities…continued
Available-for-sale equity securities – unlisted totalling $1,502,660 (2011 - $2,296,244) are carried at cost less
impairment. The Bank is not able to reliably measure the fair value of the equity securities since the shares are
not traded in an active market and the future cash flows relating to the securities cannot be reliably estimated.
All debt securities have fixed interest rates.
The weighted average effective interest rate on securities held-to-maturity stated at amortised cost at
December 31, 2012 was 6.31% (2011 – 6.57%).
The movement in available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial asset during the year is as follows:
Available-forsale
$

Held-tomaturity
$

At January 1, 2012

10,291,050

14,422,198

Additions
Disposals (sale and redemption)
Gain from changes in fair value
Allowance for non-performance (Note 25)

108,494
(1,172,945)
606,600
(743,188)

8,320,538
(2,770,682)
–
–

9,090,011

19,972,054

At January 1, 2011

13,611,702

16,264,813

Additions
Reclassification from HTM to AFS
Disposals (sale and redemption)
Loss from changes in fair value
Allowance for non-performance (Note 25)

726,458
–
(2,653,821)
(50,370)
(1,342,919)

6,285,385
–
(8,128,000)
–
–

At December 31, 2011

10,291,050

14,422,198

At December 31, 2012
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12 Property, plant and equipment
Land and
Furniture
Building and Fixtures
$
$

Equipment
$

Motor
Vehicles
$

Work in
progress
$

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

12,303,032
(1,272,923)

1,412,126
(972,728)

11,334,151
(8,415,822)

186,920
(124,628)

–
–

25,236,229
(10,786,101)

Net book amount

11,030,109

439,398

2,918,329

62,292

–

14,450,128

Opening net book amount
11,030,109
Additions in the year
1,022,683
Disposals in the year
–
Depreciation on disposals
–
Depreciation charge (Note 22) (801,480)

439,398
185,061
–
–
(57,075)

2,918,329
2,022,051
–
–
(984,885)

62,292
86,000
(66,500)
45,692
(19,625)

–
–
–
–
–

14,450,128
3,315,795
(66,500)
45,692
(1,863,065)

Closing net book amount

567,384

3,955,495

107,859

–

15,882,050

13,356,202
(9,400,707)

206,420
(98,561)

–
–

28,485,524
(12,603,474)

567,384

3,955,495

107,859

–

15,882,050

Opening net book amount
11,251,312
Devaluation
(995,542)
Additions in the year
211,577
Disposals in the year
(2,960,063)
Depreciation on disposals
1,190,688
Depreciation charge (Note 22) (346,418)

567,384
–
58,952
–
–
(58,736)

3,955,495
–
664,108
(4,892)
2,140
(843,189)

107,859
–
–
(120,420)
94,114
(21,572)

Closing net book amount

567,600

3,773,662

59,981

–
907,499

86,000
(26,019)

907,499
–

25,943,503
(12,283,207)

59,981

907,499

13,660,296

Total
$

At December 31, 2010

Year ended
December 31, 2011

11,251,312

At December 31, 2011
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

13,325,715
(2,074,403)

Net book amount

11,251,312

1,597,187
(1,029,803)

Year ended
December 31, 2012

8,351,554

–
–
907,499
–
–

15,882,050
(995,542)
1,842,136
(3,085,375)
1,286,942
(1,269,915)
13,660,296

At December 31, 2012
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

9,278,436
(926,882)

Net book amount

8,351,554

1,656,139
14,015,429
(1,088,539) (10,241,767)
567,600

3,773,662
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12 Property, plant and equipment …continued
In 2012, land and buildings were valued by an independent valuer based on open market value. The valuation
indicated that the market value was below the carrying amount of the respective assets in the books of the Bank.
As a result, the carrying amounts were decreased by $995,542, with a corresponding decrease in the revaluation
reserves in equity.
The historical cost of land and buildings are:
2012
$
Cost
Accumulated depreciation based on historical cost
Depreciated historical cost

2011
$

5,792,568
(3,113,690)

8,589,818
(3,025,651)

2,678,878

5,564,167

2012
$

2011
$

4,188,474
220,697
1,265,747

3,792,183
160,602
689,366

5,674,918

4,642,151

2012
$

2011
$

153,509,409
215,921,898
32,896,697

165,478,049
208,997,652
29,617,463

402,328,004

404,093,164

397,553,596
4,774,408

402,768,655
1,324,509

402,328,004

404,093,164

13 Other assets

Accounts receivable
Inventories of stationery and supplies
Prepayments

14 Due to customers

Time deposits
Savings accounts
Demand amounts

Current
Non-current

All deposits carry fixed interest rates.
The weighted average effective interest rate of customers’ deposits at December 31, 2012 was 3.44% (2011 3.58%).
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15 Other liabilities

Manager’s cheques outstanding
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

2012
$

2011
$

1,548,315
2,859,650
598,263

1,379,381
3,923,455
494,060

5,006,228

5,796,896

16 Retirement benefit obligations
Pension benefits
The amount recognised in the balance sheet at December 31, 2012 is determined as follows:
2012
$
Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Unrecognised actuarial loss

2011
$

3,390,000
(4,311,000)

3,002,000
(3,853,000)

(921,000)

(851,000)

1,144,000

1,244,000

223,000

393,000

2012
$

2011
$

Liability in the balance sheet
The movement in defined benefit obligations is as follows:

At beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Members’ contributions
Actuarial loss/(gain)
Benefits paid

3,002,000
126,000
209,000
52,000
20,000
(19,000)

3,027,000
124,000
211,000
50,000
(385,000)
(25,000)

At end of year

3,390,000

3,002,000
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16 Retirement benefit obligations ...continued
The movement in fair value of plan assets for the year is as follows:
2012
$

2011
$

At beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain
Bank’s contributions
Members’ contributions
Benefits paid

3,853,000
276,000
(14,000)
163,000
52,000
(19,000)

3,410,000
246,000
(13,000)
185,000
50,000
(25,000)

At end of year

4,311,000

3,853,000

2012
$

2011
$

The amounts recognised in the statement of income are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest cost
Net actuarial gains recognised in the year
Expected return on plan assets
Total included in staff costs (Note 24)

126,000
209,000
(66,000)
(276,000)
(7,000)

124,000
211,000
(38,000)
(246,000)
51,000

The actual return on plan assets was $262,000 (2011 - $233,000).
Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet:
2012
$
At beginning of year
Pension expense
Contributions paid
At end of year

2011
$

393,000
(7,000)
(163,000)

527,000
51,000
(185,000)

223,000

393,000

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
NIC ceiling increases
Pension increases
Future salary increases

2012
%

2011
%

7
7
2
0
5

7
7
2
0
5
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16 Retirement benefit obligations…continued
Plan assets allocation is as follows:
2012
%

2011
%

70
30

70
30

100

100

Debt securities
Others

The expected rate of return on plan assets set by reference to estimated long-term returns on the plan’s strategic
asset allocation.
The Bank’s expected contributions for the year 2013 is estimated at $167,000 (2012 - $161,000).
The amount in the pension plan for the year is as follows:
2012
$
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

2011
$

3,390,000 3,002,000
(4,311,000) (3,853,000)

Surplus in the plan
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
Experience adjustment on plan assets

2010
$

2009
$

2008
$

3,027,000
2,704,000 2,378,000
(3,410,000) (2,961,000) (2,613,000)

(921,000)

(851,000)

(383,000)

(257,000)

(235,000)

20,000
(14,000)

(167,000)
(13,000)

(14,000)
21,000

13,000
3,000

(43,000)
75,000

17 Deferred income tax
Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal
tax rate of 30%.
2012
2011
$
$
At beginning of year
Statement of income recovery/(loss) for the year (Note 26)

(72,895)
16,377

358,544
(431,439)

Deferred tax liability at end of year

(56,518)

(72,895)

The deferred tax asset comprises of the following temporary differences:
2012
$
Accelerated capital allowances
Retirement benefit obligation

Deferred tax liability at income tax rate of 30%

2011
$

(411,392)
223,000

(635,983)
393,000

(188,392)

(242,983)

(56,518)

(72,895)
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18 Share capital
No. of
Shares

2012
$

No. of
Shares

2011
$

4,999,966

7,971,454

4,999,966

7,971,454

Authorized:
5,000,000 ordinary shares
At beginning and end of year

19 Statutory reserve
Pursuant to Section 14(1) of the Banking Act of St. Lucia No. 34 of 2006, the Bank shall, out of its net profits of
each year transfer to that reserve a sum equal to not less than twenty percent of such profits whenever the amount
of the fund is less than one hundred percent of the paid-up capital of the Bank.

20 Net interest income

Interest and similar income
Loans and advances
Deposits with banks
Investment securities

2012
$

2011
$

30,342,905
34,753
4,226,792

29,973,623
21,410
5,084,827

34,604,450

35,079,860

6,719,898
7,275,830
27,275

7,167,310
6,751,444
35,302

14,023,003

13,954,056

20,581,447

21,125,804

2012
$

2011
$

Interest expense and similar charges
Time deposits
Savings deposits
Demand deposits

Net interest income

21 Other operating income

Commission income
Foreign exchange
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fees income
Dividend income

3,780,724
3,036,221
858,192
312,528
177,036

2,941,455
2,876,029
(2,807)
339,898
114,240

8,164,701

6,268,815
(44)
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22 Other operating expenses
2012
$

2011
$

6,697,746
6,446,163
1,269,915
954,799

6,242,657
5,899,380
1,863,065
840,153

15,368,623

14,845,255

2012
$

2011
$

Other operating expenses
Advertising
Equipment expenses
Postage, telephone and telexes
Utilities
Security expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Directors’ fees and expenses
Professional fees
Audit fees
Insurance
Stationery
Bank licence
Rates and taxes
Legal fees

1,474,672
1,114,453
783,987
663,175
650,399
413,092
399,170
237,754
224,427
220,750
213,780
141,665
128,000
24,375
8,047

882,025
1,026,809
929,732
681,467
543,421
415,207
331,723
275,716
207,046
187,500
229,066
353,892
128,000
25,875
25,178

Total administrative expenses

6,697,746

6,242,657

2012
$

2011
$

Administrative expenses (Note 23)
Staff costs (Note 24)
Depreciation (Note 12)
Operating lease rental

23 Administrative expenses

24 Staff costs

Salaries and wages
Other employee benefits
Profit sharing
Social security costs
Pension costs (Note 16)

5,045,681
945,315
264,570
197,597
(7,000)

4,758,189
628,917
271,456
189,818
51,000

6,446,163

5,899,380

The average number of employees during the year was 112 (2011 - 107).
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25 Impairment losses

Impairment losses from loans and advances (Note 10)
Impairment losses on investments (Note 11)

2012
$

2011
$

4,227,725
743,188

2,357,087
1,342,919

4,970,913

3,700,006

2012
$

2011
$

26 Income tax expense

Current tax
Tax over accrued in prior years
Deferred tax (Note 17)

1,480,521
–
(16,377)

1,531,508
(25,000)
431,439

1,464,144

1,937,947

Tax on the Bank’s income before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory tax rate of 30% as follows:

Profit before income tax
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 30%
Tax effect of exempt income
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax over accrued in prior years

2012
$

2011
$

8,406,612

8,849,358

2,521,984
(2,184,005)
1,126,165
–

2,654,807
(2,440,627)
1,748,767
(25,000)

1,464,144

1,937,947

There was no income tax effect relating to components of other comprehensive income.

27 Earnings per share
Basic and diluted
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable to shareholders of
$6,942,468 (2011 - $6,911,411) divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue ranking for dividend
during the year of 4,999,966 (2011 - 4,999,966).

(46)
continuing a legacy of nation building
- 91 -

1st National Bank St. Lucia Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

28 Dividends
In the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 a total of $1,999,986 was appropriated from
retained earnings relating to the 2011 dividend. At a meeting on March 20, 2013, the Board of Directors declared
a dividend of $0.40 per share in respect of 2012 amounting to a total of $1,999,986 (2011 - $1,999,986). This
dividend will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ended December 31,
2013.

29 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with
less than 3 months maturity:

Cash and balances with Central Bank (Note 5)
Due from other banks (Note 6)

2012
$

2011
$

6,617,372
15,884,442

11,550,207
19,851,680

22,501,814

31,401,887

30 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. A number of banking transactions
are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business.
The volume of related-party transactions, outstanding balances at the year-end and related expenses and income
for the year are as follows:
Loan and advances to Directors and other key management personnel
2012
$

2011
$

Loans outstanding at beginning of year
Net loans issued/(paid) for the year

3,239,700
3,807,639

4,226,363
(986,663)

Loans outstanding at end of year

7,047,339

3,239,700

521,438

410,636

Interest income earned
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30 Related party transactions ……continued
Deposits from Directors and other key management personnel
2012
$

2011
$

Deposits at beginning of year
Net deposits (repaid)/received during the year

4,540,684
(294,294)

1,765,657
2,775,027

Deposits outstanding at end of year

4,246,390

4,540,684

86,697

98,258

2012
$

2011
$

957,733
562,993

917,974
140,022

1,520,726

1,057,996

Interest expense on deposits
Key management compensation and Directors’ fees

Salaries and other short-term benefits
Post and other employment benefits

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Loans commitment, guarantee and other financial facilities
At December 31, 2012, the Bank had the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers, guarantee and other facilities as follows:

Loan commitments
Guarantees and standby letters of credit

2012
$

2011
$

22,991,935
442,658

27,757,273
3,831,933

23,434,593

31,589,206
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Staff Dinner and Awards
Ceremony
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